
Pre-Agenda Session @ 5:30 p.m. 

A G E N D A 
City Council Meeting 

Monday, June 3, 2024 – 6:00 p.m. 
 OPENING

 Call to Order

 Invocation

 Pledge of Allegiance

 Roll Call

 FORMAL PUBLIC COMMENT

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Formal Public Comment – City Council Agenda Protocol 

The City of Garden City has identified this portion of the meeting to allow individuals an opportunity to formally 
address the City Council on issues of importance.  Garden City requires that individuals who desire to formally 
address the City Council submit a written request form outlining the subject matter that they intend to discuss so 
that they can be placed on the meeting agenda.  Members of the public desiring to be placed on the agenda to 
present or address matters to the City Council must submit a formal “REQUEST TO BE PLACED ON THE CITY 
COUNCIL AGENDA” form to the Office of the City Manager at least 10 days prior to the requested City Council 
meeting date that you wish to speak.  City Council meetings are held on the first and third Monday of each month 
so the request must be submitted no later than 5:00 pm on the Friday which constitutes 10 days prior.  The 
request can be done in person, regular mail, fax or e-mail and the speaker should obtain acknowledgement of the 
request from the City to demonstrate that the 10 day requirement has been met.  The request form may be 
obtained from the Office of the City Manager and on the City’s website www.gardencity-ga.gov.  The request 
should state the name of the individual(s) desiring to be heard and the subject matter to be presented to City 
Council.  Requests may be referred at the discretion of the City Manager, to appropriate staff for mediation prior 
to being placed on the public agenda.  Please be advised the completion of a request form does not entitle the 
speaker to be added to the agenda. 

http://www.gardencity-ga.gov/


 RECEIPT OF INFORMAL PUBLIC COMMENT
Procedure: To best manage this meeting section, any person who desires to address the City Council 
must sign up using the process outlined on the website where this meeting is advertised.  Once 
recognized by the Mayor, the person will be allowed to speak in accordance with the Informal Public 
Comment–Speaker Protocols outlined below.   



 PUBLIC HEARINGS

 
 
 
 

Speaking to a Public Hearing Item Protocol 

In the interests of time and to ensure fairness of all persons who appear before the City Council to speak for or 
against a public hearing item, speakers will be limited to three (3) minutes each to address City Council except as 
described herein.  One speaker for the Petitioner may address the City Council for no more than 10 minutes, 
unless extended by the Mayor.  In an effort help the City Council and the general public to better understand the 
issues, the Mayor may request that a City staff member address the City Council from the podium.  Speakers 
from the general public may only speak when recognized by the Mayor during the public hearing.  Speakers will 
be asked to come to the podium to address the City Council for three (3) minutes and they shall state their name 
and resident address for the record.   

Speakers addressing City Council on a public hearing item should coordinate comments to respect City Council’s 
time limits.  Groups should select a spokesperson to present the major points that summarize their position and 
opinions.  Speakers are urged to be brief and non-repetitive with their comments.  Comments shall specifically 
address the public hearing item before the City Council, and the speaker shall maintain appropriate tone and 
decorum when addressing the City Council.  City Council may ask questions of the applicant, speakers, or staff 
during these proceedings only for the purpose of clarifying information.  The speaker shall not direct derogatory 
comments to any individual, organization, or business.  At the conclusion of the three (3) minute time period, the 
speaker will be notified that his/her time has elapsed, and the next speaker will be recognized to come forward 
to the podium and address the City Council.  Once the public hearing is closed on an item, there will be no 
further opportunity for formal or informal public input at a City Council meeting. 
 



PROCEDURES FOR CONDUCTING PUBLIC HEARINGS ON PROPOSED ZONING DECISIONS BEFORE 
GARDEN CITY’S MAYOR AND COUNCIL AND STANDARDS GOVERNING THE EXERCISE OF  

CITY COUNCIL’S ZONING POWER 

Procedures for Conducting Public Hearings on Proposed Zoning Decisions: 
All public hearings conducted by the Mayor and Council on Garden City, Georgia, on proposed zoning decisions shall 
be conducted as follows: 

(1) All public hearings by the Mayor and Council on zoning amendments shall be chaired by the
Mayor.

(2) The Mayor shall open the hearing by stating the specific zoning amendment being considered 
at the public hearing and further stating that printed copies of the adopted standards
governing the exercise of the Mayor and Council’s zoning power and the procedures
governing the hearing are available to the public.

(3) The Director of the City’s Planning and Zoning Department shall advise the Mayor and
Council of the recommendation of the Planning Commission when applicable.

(4) The Mayor shall determine the number of attendees who desire to testify or present evidence
at the hearing.

(5) When there is a large number of individuals wishing to testify at a hearing, the Mayor may
invoke time limits on individual speakers.  In such cases, these time limits shall apply to all
speakers.  Proponents, including the petitioner or the petitioner’s agent requesting the zoning
decision, shall have no less than ten (10) minutes for the presentation of data, evidence, and
expert opinions; opponents of the proposed decision shall have an equal minimum period of
time.  The Mayor may grant additional time; provided, however, an equal period of time shall 
be granted both sides.

(6) The petitioner requesting such zoning decision, or the applicant’s agent, shall be recognized
first and shall be permitted to present and explain the request for the zoning decision.
Thereafter, all individuals who so desire shall be permitted to speak in favor of the zoning
decision.

(7) After all individuals have had an opportunity to speak in accordance with subparagraph (6)
above, those individuals present at the public hearing who wish to speak in opposition to the
requested zoning decision shall have an opportunity to speak.

(8) The Mayor may limit repetitious comments in the interest of time and may call for a show of
hands of those persons present in favor of or opposed to the proposed decision.

(9) It shall be the duty of the Mayor to maintain decorum and to assure the public hearing on the
proposed decision is conducted in a fair and orderly manner.

(10) Once all parties have concluded their testimony, the Mayor shall adjourn the public hearing.
Standards Governing the Exercise of The Zoning Powers of Garden City’s Mayor and Council: 
Prior to making a zoning amendment, the Mayor and Council shall evaluate the merits of a proposed 
amendment according to the following criteria: 

(1) Is this request a logical extension of a zoning boundary which would improve the pattern of
uses in the general area?

(2) Is this spot zoning and generally unrelated to either existing zoning or the pattern of
development of the area?

(3) Could traffic created by the proposed use or other uses permissible under the zoning sought
traverse established single-family neighborhoods on minor streets, leading to congestion,
noise, and traffic hazards?

(4) Will this request place irreversible limitations or cause material detriment on the area
similarly zoned as it is or on future plans for it?

(5) Is there an imminent need for the rezoning and is the property likely to be used for the use
requested?

(6) Would the proposed use precipitate similar requests which would generate or accelerate
adverse land use changes in the zone or neighborhood?



 Approval of City Council Minutes
 Consideration of the minutes from the May 20th Pre-Agenda Session, City Council Meeting, and Executive 

Session.

 City Manager Updates

 ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION
 Ordinance – Zoning Map Amendment (1580 Dean Forest Road):  An ordinance to amend the zoning 

ordinance and map of Garden City, Georgia, as amended, to rezone from a zoning classification of “P-
C2A” to a zoning classification of “P-I-1” the easternmost two hundred fifty (250’) feet of a 3.84-acre 
parcel of land currently owned by Colonial Fuel & Lubricant Services, Inc., more commonly known 
1580 Dean Forest Road.

 Resolution – Extension of Outdoor Advertising Moratorium: A resolution to extend the moratorium 
barring the issuance of permits for new outdoor advertising or separate use signs within the city limits 
of Garden City from June 3, 2024 to July 2, 2024, in order to allow the City Council sufficient time to 
consider the proposed amendments to the City’s Code of Ordinances relating to outdoor advertising 
and separate use signs.

 Resolution – 2024 LMIG Engineering Services: A resolution authorizing the City Manager to apply to 
the Georgia Department of Transportation for a 2024 Local Maintenance Improvements Grant to 
assist with funding for the resurfacing of Chatham Villa Drive, Byck Avenue, and Salt Creek Road (to 
the dead end) and to further authorize the City Manager to accept and execute a work order of 
Brennan Jones Engineering Associates, LLC, for the preparation of the grant application, and the 
performance of the design, geotechnical testing, bid solicitation, and construction administration 
associated with the road work.

 Resolution – Emergency Sewer Main Line Repair Work:  A resolution to ratify emergency service 
procurement for the City’s sewer line on Smith Avenue.

 Resolution – Staffing Level Amendment (Public Works & Utilities Department): A resolution by the 
Mayor and Council to amend the FY2024 adopted budget staffing level of the General Fund to provide 
for a full-time Public Works & Utilities Department Administrator for the City’s Public Works & 
Utilities Department.

 Resolution – Interim Clerk of Council Appointment:  A resolution to appoint Veronica 
Enoch, Executive Assistant to the City Manager, as the Interim Clerk of Council.

 ADJOURN















GARDEN CITY, GEORGIA AFFIDAVIT AS TO OPEN MEETING LAW 
 

The undersigned Mayor, under oath, certifies that at a meeting of the Mayor and Council of Garden City Georgia, 
held on the date identified below being the date of this document, the Mayor and Council closed their meeting as 
permitted by the Chapter 14 of Title 50 of the Georgia Code and pursuant to advice by the City Attorney.  The only 
matters considered or discussed during the closed session or executive session of the meeting is as checked below: 
 

Check 
√ 

Subject Matter As provided in  
O.C.G.A. Section 

 Meeting to discuss or vote to authorize the settlement of a matter covered by the attorney-
client privilege.  The subject discussed was __________________________________________ 
(identify the case or claim discussed, but not the substance of the attorney-client discussion) 

50-14-2 (1) 
50-14-3 (b)(1)(A) 

 Meeting to discuss or vote to authorize negotiations to purchase, dispose of or lease property. 50-14-3(b)(1)(B) 
 Meeting to discuss or vote to authorize the ordering of an appraisal related to the acquisition 

or disposal of real estate. 
50-14-3(b)(1)(C) 

 Meeting to discuss or vote to enter into a contract to purchase, dispose of, or lease property 
subject to approval in a subsequent public vote. 

50-14-3(b)(1)(D) 

 Meeting to discuss or vote to enter into an option to purchase, dispose of, or lease real estate 
subject to approval in a subsequent public vote. 

50-14-3(b)(1)(E) 

 Meeting to discuss or deliberate upon the appointment, employment, compensation, hiring, 
disciplinary action or dismissal, or periodic evaluation or rating of a public officer or employee. 

50-14-3(b)(2) 

 Meeting to interview one or more applicants for the position of executive head of an agency. 50-14-3(b)(2) 
 
√ 

Pursuant to the attorney-client privilege, a meeting otherwise required to be open was closed 
to the public in order to consult and meet with legal counsel pertaining to pending or potential 
litigation, settlement, claims, administrative proceedings, or other judicial actions brought or 
to be brought by or against the agency or any officer or employee or in which the agency or 
any officer or employee may be directly involved, and the matter discussed was 
____________ ____________________________________________________________                                             
(identify the matter but not the substance of the discussion) 

50-14-2(1) 

 Staff meeting held for investigative purposes under duties or responsibilities imposed by law. 50-14-3(a)(1) 
 Meeting to consider records or portions of records exempt from public inspection or 

disclosure because there are no reasonable means to consider the record without disclosing 
the exempt portions.  

Article 4, 
Chapter 18 
of Title 50 

 
This Affidavit is executed for the purpose of complying with the mandate of O.C.G.A 50-14-4(b) and is to be filed 
with the official minutes of the aforementioned meeting.  
 
This the _______ day of ___________________________.  By:________________________________ 
             Mayor, City of Garden City, Georgia 
Sworn to and subscribed before me on the  
above indicated date: 
 
__________________________________ 
Notary Public, State of Georgia 
Commission expires: ________________ 
 
(Although the same is not mandatory, the following participants concur with the accuracy of this Affidavit.) 
 
__________________________________    __________________________________ 
 
__________________________________    __________________________________ 
 
__________________________________    __________________________________ 





















A RESOLUTION TO RATIFY EMERGENCY SERVICE PROCUREMENT 

FOR CITY'S SEWER LINE ON SMITH A VENUE 

WHEREAS, on May 18, 2024, the City Manager was compelled to make an emergency 

procurement of services from Savannah River Utilities Co. totaling $88,340.00 in order to repair and/or 

replace components of the City's eight (8") inch sewer main line on Smith Avenue which, because of its 

depth (17 feet) and positioning (beneath a high pressure gas line and force), could not be handled by the 

City's public works crews who lack the necessary training and equipment to handle such work; and, 

WHEREAS, at the time of the emergency procurement, the City Manager, pursuant to Section 4.10 

of the City's Purchasing Manual, Policies and Procedures, submitted to the Mayor and Council a record of 

same, explaining the basis for the emergency and her method for selecting the contractor which provided 

the services, and identifying the features of the procurement; and, 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council presently wish to ratify and approve the above-mentioned 

emergency procurement, having determined from the City Manager's report that there was in fact an 

emergency threatening public health, welfare and safety, in that the procurement was required to insure the 

continued operation of the City's sewer system; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF GARDEN 

CITY, GEORGIA, that the emergency procurement of services totaling $88,340.00 made on May 18, 

2024, by the City Manager from Savannah River Utilities Co., as evidenced by Exhibit A attached 

hereto, be ratified and approved as being validly made pursuant to, and in compliance with, Section 4.10 

of the City's Purchasing Manual. 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED by City Council and the Mayor on this _ _  day of June, 2024. 

BRUCE CAMPBELL, Mayor 









RESOLUTION 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL FOR GARDEN CITY, GEORGIA, TO AMEND THE FY2024 
ADOPTED BUDGET STAFFING LEVEL OF THE GENERAL FUND TO PROVIDE FOR A FULL-TIME PUBLIC 
WORKS & UTILITIES DEPARTMENT ADMINISTRATOR FOR THE CITY’S PUBLIC WORKS & UTILITIES 
DEPARTMENT. 
 
WHEREAS, in its adoption of the FY2024 Budget, the City Council approved a Staffing Level Chart for the 
City providing the staffing levels for each of the funds and departments of the city; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to amend said Staffing Level Chart of the General Fund to add a full-
time Public Works & Utilities Administrator position for the Public Works & Utilities Department as 
reflected in Exhibit “A”; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the approximate total salary and benefits cost for the full-time Public Works & Utilities 
Administrator position is estimated at $137,800. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the City of Garden City, Georgia:  
 

1) That the City Council does hereby amend the FY2024 Budget Staffing Level of the General Fund 
to add a full-time Public Works & Utilities Administrator position to bring the total number of 
authorized full-time positions for the Public Works & Utilities Department to twelve. 
 

2) That the City Council does hereby instruct the City Manager to make the increase adjustments to 
various certain funding levels in the FY2024 General Fund budget and Water/Sewer Fund line 
items for salaries and benefits to reflect the changes in staffing level to balance the budget 
through the City’s customary mid-year or end-of-the-year budget amendment process.  

 

ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of Garden City, Georgia, this 3rd day of June 2024. 

       

      ______________________________________  
      BRUCE CAMPBELL, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT “A” 

FY2024 Staffing Level Chart Amendment 
General Fund (Public Works Department) 

 

 

 

2022 2023 2024 Pay Status
Actual Amended Amended Budget

Public Works & Utilities Department Administrator 1 0 1 Exempt
Director of Public Works 0 1 1 Exempt
Executive Assistant 1 1 1 Exempt
Public Works Supervisor 1 1 1 Exempt
Public Works Crew Leader 3 3 3 Non-Exempt
Public Works Technician 3 2 2 Non-Exempt
Heavy Equip. Operator 3 3 3 Non-Exempt

Total Public Works FTE Staffing 12 11 12

Public Works (Includes Stormwater)




